You can view the agenda on the website
or use a smart phone camera and scan the code
To:

The Chair and Members of the Health and
Adult Care Scrutiny Committee

Date: 3 November 2021

County Hall
Topsham Road
Exeter
Devon
EX2 4QD

Contact: Gerry Rufolo 01392 382299
Email: gerry.rufolo@devon.gov.uk

HEALTH AND ADULT CARE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Thursday, 11th November, 2021
A meeting of the Health and Adult Care Scrutiny Committee is to be held on the above
date at 10.30 am at Council Chamber – County Hall to consider the following matters.
Phil Norrey
Chief Executive
AGENDA

PART 1 - OPEN COMMITTEE
1

Apologies

2

Minutes
Minutes of the meeting held on 15 September 2021 (previously circulated)

3

Items Requiring Urgent Attention
Items which in the opinion of the Chair should be considered at the meeting as
matters of urgency.

4

Public Participation
Members of the public may make representations/presentations on any
substantive matter listed in the published agenda, as set out hereunder, relating to
a specific matter or an examination of services or facilities provided or to be
provided.
MATTERS FOR CONSIDERATION OR REVIEW

5

Long Term Plan Thematic - Urgent Care (Pages 1 - 10)
Report of the Devon Clinical Commissioning Group, attached

6

South Western Ambulance Service Trust: Performance Update (Pages 11 - 16)
Report of the South Western Ambulance Trust, attached

7

Devon Safeguarding Adults Partnership: Annual Report (Pages 17 - 34)
Report of the Torbay and Devon Safeguarding Adults Partnership, attached

8

Finance and Performance Mid-Year Update (Pages 35 - 40)
Report of the Chief Officer for Adult Care and Health, Devon County Council
(ACH/21/140), attached

9

Service Delivery for Public Health Devon: In-Year Briefing (Pages 41 - 44)
Report of the Director of Public Health, attached

10

Health and Care General Update (Pages 45 - 50)
Joint report from Devon County Council and NHS Devon Clinical Commissioning
Group (ACH/21/142), attached

11

Acute Care: Capacity and Pressures
In accordance with Standing Order 23(2) Councillor J Bailey has asked that the
Committee consider this matter.

12

Devon ICS: Finance Pressures
In accordance with Standing Order 23(2) Councillor J Bailey has asked that the
Committee consider this matter.

13

Scrutiny Committee Work Programme
In accordance with previous practice, Scrutiny Committees are requested to
review the list of forthcoming business and determine which items are to be
included in the Work Programme.
The Committee may also wish to review the content of the Cabinet Forward Plan
and the Children’s Services Risk Register to see if there are any specific items
therein it might wish to explore further.
MATTERS FOR INFORMATION

14

Information Previously Circulated
Below is a list of information previously circulated for Members, since the last
meeting, relating to topical developments which have been or are currently being
considered by this Scrutiny Committee.
(a) Risk Register for Health and Adult Care.
(b) Devon CCG: Coronavirus Vaccination in Devon Briefing: Updates.
(c) Masterclass Information covering: Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards, the Joint
Strategic Needs Assessment; Devon Health and Care System Under Pressure;
and Improving Support for People with Disabilities.

PART II - ITEMS WHICH MAY BE TAKEN IN THE ABSENCE OF PRESS AND
PUBLIC ON THE GROUNDS THAT EXEMPT INFORMATION MAY BE
DISCLOSED
Nil
Members are reminded that Part II Reports contain exempt information and should
therefore be treated accordingly. They should not be disclosed or passed on to any
other person(s). They need to be disposed of carefully and should be returned to the
Democratic Services Officer at the conclusion of the meeting for disposal.

MEETINGS INFORMATION AND NOTES FOR VISITORS
Getting to County Hall and Notes for Visitors
For SatNav purposes, the postcode for County Hall is EX2 4QD
Further information about how to get to County Hall gives information on visitor
parking at County Hall and bus routes.
Exeter has an excellent network of dedicated cycle routes. For further information
see the Travel Devon webpages.
The nearest mainline railway stations are Exeter Central (5 minutes from the High
Street), St David’s and St Thomas. All have regular bus services to the High Street.
Visitors to County Hall are asked to report to Main Reception on arrival. If visitors
have any specific requirements, please contact reception on 01392 382504
beforehand.
Membership of a Committee
For full details of the Membership of a Committee, please visit the Committee page
on the website and click on the name of the Committee you wish to see.
Committee Terms of Reference
For the terms of reference for any Committee, please visit the Committee page on
the website and click on the name of the Committee. Under purpose of Committee,
the terms of reference will be listed. Terms of reference for all Committees are also
detailed within Section 3b of the Council’s Constitution.
Access to Information
Any person wishing to inspect any minutes, reports or background papers relating to
an item on the agenda should contact the Clerk of the Meeting. To find this, visit the
Committee page on the website and find the Committee. Under contact information
(at the bottom of the page) the Clerk’s name and contact details will be present. All
agenda, reports and minutes of any Committee are published on the Website
Public Participation
The Council operates a Public Participation Scheme where members of the public
can interact with various Committee meetings in a number of ways. For full details of
whether or how you can participate in a meeting, please look at the Public
Participation Scheme or contact the Clerk for the meeting.
In relation to Highways and Traffic Orders Committees, any member of the District
Council or a Town or Parish Councillor for the area covered by the HATOC who is
not a member of the Committee, may attend and speak to any item on the Agenda
with the consent of the Committee, having given 24 hours’ notice.
Webcasting, Recording or Reporting of Meetings and Proceedings
The proceedings of any meeting may be recorded and / or broadcasted live, apart
from any confidential items which may need to be considered in the absence of the
press and public. For more information go to our webcasting pages

Anyone wishing to film part or all of the proceedings may do so unless the press and
public are excluded for that part of the meeting or there is good reason not to do so,
as directed by the Chair. Filming must be done as unobtrusively as possible without
additional lighting; focusing only on those actively participating in the meeting and
having regard to the wishes of others present who may not wish to be filmed.
Anyone wishing to film proceedings is asked to advise the Chair or the Democratic
Services Officer in attendance.
Members of the public may also use social media to report on proceedings.
Declarations of Interest for Members of the Council
It is to be noted that Members of the Council must declare any interest they may
have in any item to be considered at this meeting, prior to any discussion taking
place on that item.
WiFI
An open, publicly available Wi-Fi network (i.e. DCC) is normally available for
meetings held in the Committee Suite at County Hall.
Fire
In the event of the fire alarm sounding, leave the building immediately by the nearest
available exit following the fire exit signs. If doors fail to unlock press the Green
break glass next to the door. Do not stop to collect personal belongings; do not use
the lifts; and do not re-enter the building until told to do so. Assemble either on the
cobbled car parking area adjacent to the administrative buildings or in the car park
behind Bellair.
First Aid
Contact Main Reception (Extension 2504) for a trained first aider.
Mobile Phones
Please switch off all mobile phones before entering the Committee Room or Council
Chamber
Alternative Formats

If anyone needs a copy of an Agenda and/or a Report in
another format (e.g. large print, audio tape, Braille or other
languages), please contact the Customer Service Centre on
0345 155 1015 or email: committee@devon.gov.uk or write to
the Democratic and Scrutiny Secretariat in G31, County Hall,
Exeter, EX2 4QD.
Induction Loop available

Agenda Item 5

Urgent Care update
Health and Adult Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Recommendation
That the Health and Adult Care Scrutiny Committee the committee notes the report
and agrees to future consideration of this issue when appropriate.
1. Overview of urgent care system
1.1. Each year 12.5 million patients self-present to Emergency Department (ED)
services in England, some estimates suggest that up to 3 million people who
come to ED each year could have their needs addressed elsewhere in the
urgent care system.
1.2. Both urgent and emergency care services play a specific part in supporting
patients to receive the right care by the right person, as quickly as possible.
1.3. It is important to understand the difference between urgent and emergency
care •

Emergency: Life threatening illnesses or accidents which require
immediate, intensive treatment. Services that should be accessed in an
emergency

•

Urgent: An illness or injury that requires urgent attention but is not a lifethreatening situation

Page 1

Agenda Item 5
2

2. Existing urgent and emergency care provision across Devon
Current community urgent care provision
2.1. Current urgent and emergency care provision across Devon, includes:

East
1 Urgent Care
Centre

North

2 Minor Injuries
Units

2 Minor Injuries Units
(currently closed,
replaced by GP led
service)

3 GP led Minor
Injuries Services

1 Resource Centre
(integrated service with a
GP practice)

2 Wall in Centres
(one of which is
temporarily closed)
11 GP Minor
Injuries Local
Enhanced Service

7 GP Minor Injuries Local
Enhanced Service

South
1 Urgent
Care Centre
2 Minor
Injuries
Units
(currently
closed)

Western
1 Urgent Care
Centre
2 Minor Injuries
Units

14 GP Minor
Injuries Local
Enhanced Service

2.2. The picture across Devon is varied, there is different nomenclature for
services that provide similar care and even where services share a name,
this does not necessarily mean that they share the same specification,
availability of diagnostics or hours of operation.
2.3. There is significant variation in the cost of community urgent care services
across Devon with the cost per care episode with no apparent rationale.
2.4. A number of issues persist that impact on patients’ ability to access urgent
care in a community setting:
• Ability to recruitment of suitably qualified and experienced clinicians
• Smaller services are vulnerable to temporary, often short notice closure
as a result of staff sickness where no alternative cover can be sourced at
short notice
• The quality of service differs between different facilities

Page 2

Agenda Item 5
3
Integrated Urgent Care Service (IUC) (incorporating 111 and the Out of Hours
primary care service)
2.5. Devon Doctors provide Devon's IUC services which includes 111 and primary
care out-of-hours service. The out-of-hours service is available 6pm to 8am
on weekdays and 24 hours over weekends and bank holidays.
2.6. There is currently significant pressure on all IUC services across the country
with all providers struggling to deliver national targets in relation to the speed
at which calls to 111 are answered.
2.7. Devon CCG is currently in the process of re-procuring the IUC service.
Current acute urgent care provision
2.8.

University Hospital Plymouth NHS Trust (UHP)
• UHP is the largest hospital in the south west peninsula, providing
comprehensive secondary and tertiary healthcare.
• The trust’s geography gives it a secondary care catchment population of
450,000. UHP has the ED with the greatest number of attendances in
Devon per year and is a major trauma centre.
• Outside of the period affected by Covid-19, the trust sees between 8,000
and 10,000 patients per month. This equates to a figure in the region of
300 per day.

2.9.

Royal Devon and Exeter (RD&E)
• The RD&E provides services to a population of around 450,000 people.
• The department is currently undergoing redevelopment to expand resus
capacity from three to eight patients and to create a children’s ED. Outside
of the period affected by Covid-19, the trust sees between 8,000 and
10,000 patients per month. This equates to a figure in the region of 300
per day.

2.10. North Devon District Hospital (NDDH)
• NDDH is the most remote acute hospital in mainland England, at over 1.5
hour’s drive away from its nearest neighbouring acute hospital.
• Outside of periods impacted by Covid-19, NDDH sees between 4,000 and
5,000 patients per month, equating to approximately 150 patients per day.
2.11. Torbay and South Devon Hospital (TSD)
• TSD serves a resident population of approximately 286,000 people, plus
about 100,000 visitors at any one time during the summer holiday season.
• Outside of periods impacted by Covid-19, TSD see approximately 6,500
patients per month which translates into an average of 217 patients per
day.

Page 3

Agenda Item 5
4
2.12. Data available to the CCG shows that a significant number of patients are
currently attending the EDs with conditions which could safely and effectively,
and indeed more appropriately, be treated outside of an acute ED setting.
3. Integrated Urgent Care (IUC)
What are we doing - short term
Integrated Urgent Care Service (IUC) (incorporating 111 and the Out of Hours
primary care service)
3.1. Commissioners and the provider are working closely together to ensure that
the IUC service can maximise its contribution to the Devon urgent care
system a number of ongoing initiatives are outlined below:
•
•

•

Ongoing work on recruitment, retention and workforce strategy
Implementation of Enhanced Clinical Validation (ECV), the process by
which primary care and acute clinicians with a high level of experience
and/or seniority are used to validate initial outcomes of ED or 999
generated by the risk averse NHS Pathways system. These clinicians
have an increased ability to downgrade calls with 999 or ED initial
outcomes to low acuity or self-care settings
Increased use of remote working options to support flexible working

4. What are we doing – longer term
4.1. The CCG with system partners has established a programme of work as part
of Devon’s Long-Term Plan entitled “Effective navigation of patients through
the urgent care system”. The focus of the programme is designed to ensure
that:
•
•
•
•
•

People with urgent care needs get the right care in the right place, first
time
Fewer patients are required to make multiple visits to the same or
different sites
Duplication (for example of triage) is significantly reduced
Devon ICS delivers the national aspiration associated with the 111 First
Programme
Fewer people present inappropriately to the emergency department with
conditions that can be treated in an alternative environment

4.2. The IUC service plays a fundamental role in the delivery of these aspirations.
Key elements of the programme include:
•

Promoting the use of NHS 111 as a primary route into all urgent care
services

Page 4

Agenda Item 5
5
•
•
•
•

Full implementation of ECV
Securing direct access to acute Same Day Urgent Care services
Increasing the numbers of patients booked into other services such as ED
and community urgent care
Ensuring that patients who contact 111 with mental health issues are
effectively directed to specialist mental health advice and assessment

5. Community Urgent Care
What are we doing - short term
5.1. Ilfracombe and Bideford Minor Injury Units (MIUs) were closed at the start of
the COVID-19 pandemic. This allowed their highly skilled MIU staff to be
redeployed to the ED, where extra space and staffing was needed to provide
a COVID-safe service.
5.2. COVID-19 infection control guidelines are still in place at North Devon District
Hospital, meaning there is an ongoing need for the additional space and
staffing in the main ED.
5.3. Ongoing GP support is in place Monday to Friday to provide a minor injury
service in the GP practices, nearest the MIUs that are temporarily closed in
Ilfracombe and Bideford
5.4. Similarly, in response to the pandemic, the Torbay and South Devon
Foundation Trust agreed with the CCG that the MIUs in Dawlish and Totnes
would be closed. COVID-19 and the additional challenges arising from social
distancing, infection control processes and screening requirements increased
pressures on both the staffing model and service delivery.
5.5. Staff have been consolidated at Newton Abbot Urgent Treatment Centre
UTC) supporting a greater ability to provide a robust, safe and efficient
service that provides the best possible patient experience within Covid-19
and infection control regulations.
5.6. It remains the case that the MIUs cannot be safely staffed without
compromising the delivery of safe patient care within the main ED and UTC
and so the MIUs remain temporarily closed.
5.7. Both Trusts are actively recruiting to their workforce, once recruited and
backfilled, the MIU staff will be available to return.
5.8. Newton Abbot (UTC) is 9.4 miles from Totnes Community Hospital and 9.3
miles from Dawlish Community Hospital with all three towns on the main
London to Penzance train line as well as local bus services. Newton Abbot
UTC is open 7 days a week 8am to 8pm with radiology 9am to 5pm. The

Page 5

Agenda Item 5
6
South Hams population is also serviced by South Hams MIU in Kingsbridge
which is 13 miles from Totnes Community Hospital and is open 7 days a
week 9.00am to 5.00pm with radiology Monday-Friday 9am to 5pm
What are we doing – longer term
5.9. Devon CCG has embarked upon a major programme of work looking at what
the right community urgent care offer is for Devon. The aim of the programme
is to design and put in place a community urgent care offer that can provide
care for patients in the lowest acuity setting appropriate for their condition.
5.10. This is, only those who require an emergency response attend ED, and those
appropriate for treatment in the community receive this. By doing this, we will
improve patient experience, reduce ED over-crowding and deliver national
requirements.
5.11. The programme has a number of workstreams that are being progressed with
input from clinical and non-clinical stakeholders from across the system.
•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•

Building the workforce: Ensuring that going forward we have sufficient
numbers of suitably qualified and experienced clinicians within the Devon
system to safely and effectively deliver the future model of urgent care
Designing what will be delivered in different community urgent care
settings: Establishing service specifications for local Urgent Treatment
Centres (UTC) and the minor injuries enhanced primary care service
Exploring the option of co-locating UTCs on acute trust sites: There is
evidence to suggest that doing this has the greatest possible positive
impact on reducing overcrowding in EDs, thereby preserving ED services
for the most critically ill and injured patients
Maximising the role of community pharmacy: Optimising existing
community pharmacy services and introducing new, innovative services to
support patients for whom pharmacy is the right intervention
Standardising clinical practice: Ensuring that patients receive the same
high quality of care in each community urgent care setting
Understanding the ED case mix: Understanding which patients truly need
to be in the ED and who can be treated in an appropriate alternative
Travel time modelling: Supporting the decisions required on where
Devon’s community urgent care settings should be
Developing proposed costed options for the future model of community
urgent care for Devon

6. Communications
6.1. We are taking a one team approach with the system communication leads
and have agreed the following:

Page 6

Agenda Item 5
7
•
•

•

A shared system communication plan – based on themed weeks,
including coordinating media handing and spokespeople
Joint briefing for A&E boards – we are attending each of the A&E
boards across the system and doing a joint presentation with provider
comms leads.
Fortnightly ‘system communications intelligence update’ – from
November we will issue a fortnightly update to operational leads that
shows comms actions across the system, up and coming activities,
outputs and any trends with service performance i.e. 111 calls and
website hits, A&E attendances, online consultations, HANDi App
downloads etc

6.2. NHS 111 and the introduction of Think 111 First Promotion of the Think 111
First model as an urgent care pathway will continue this winter. Patients will
be directed to contact 111 (online or by phone) before attending ED. Once
they have been assessed by 111, they will be given an arrival time for their
local ED, or appropriate service.
6.3. The Devon Think 111 First Programme Board was established in 2020 to
plan and implement the new model, according to local feedback, knowledge
and expertise. A communications and engagement strategy is in place as
part of this programme.
6.4. The NHS 111 strand of the Help Us Help You (HUHY) runs nationally with TV
advertising, video on demand, social media and partnerships. The aim of this
campaign strand and messaging is to drive understanding of the role and
capabilities of NHS 111 and to increase the number of people contacting 111
when they have an urgent medical need so that they can be directed to the
most appropriate service.
6.5. The CCG has been working with NHS partners to launch a new local
campaign to promote the NHS 111 online and telephone service during 2021,
aligned with a national campaign that launched last winter.
6.6. Using local insight and findings from engagement about people’s experience
of using 111, the CCG has been working with a local marketing and design
agency on developing a new 111 campaign that targets both residents and
visitors to raise awareness of the service and reassure people about using it.
6.7. The first phase of the campaign launched at the end of May 2021 ahead of
the May Bank Holiday and particularly targeted visitors in Devon, using links
with local hospitality and accommodation owners (through district councils)
and with Visit Devon. The next phase of the campaign for the winter period
will focus on residents of Devon. The full Think 111 First toolkit is available
on Dropbox for all partners to access.

Page 7

Agenda Item 5
8

6.8. Based on our Think 111 First programme, our priority target audiences and
the highest numbers of ‘unheralded’ attendances to ED across our trusts are:
• Visitors
• Parents of young children
• Men under 40
Minor Injury Units
6.9. Individual trusts will determine when and how to promote local minor injury
units, urgent treatment centres and walk-in centres based on demand and
capacity throughout the winter period. Localised materials to promote these
services have been developed as part of the Think 111 First campaign.
7. Our system winter plan
7.1. The Devon winter plan has been refreshed and includes key system wide
action:
•
•
•

•
•

•
•

•
•
•
•

A system winter room approach, with clear system processes and
escalation
A clear COVID (blue-green) escalation plan across south, east and north
Devon
Work with Collaborative Boards and PCNs to further strengthen business
continuity plans, extending mutual aid arrangements and revising
operational processes to ensure that the most urgent needs continue to
be met.
Roll out of enhanced clinical validation to increase the percentage of
cases validated to 90% or above.
Remote working solutions, improved advertising of opportunities and
expansion of the Plymouth call centre, to address longstanding capacity
issues within the IUCS, alongside work to increase the number of patients
who can be appropriately directed into mental health services.
Work to align all hospital handover systems with ECIST best practice to
reduce delays.
Additional system support to the ambulance service, through a 24/7
paramedic advice line, comprehensive directory of services and the early
implementation of the urgent community response 2-hour programme, by
November 2021.
From 1 November, the community urgent response service will operate 7
days a week between 8am and 8pm.
A comprehensive mental health service offer across both DPT and
Livewell, for children and young people, adults and older adults.
A detailed paediatric RSV surge plan.
Comprehensive vaccination programmes for COVID boosters and
seasonal Flu.

Page 8

Agenda Item 5
9
•
•
•

A COVID Oximetry at Home service and virtual wards.
A focus on discharge processes in locality plans.
A clear and comprehensive communication strategy.

7.2. As part of the winter planning, both local and system escalation plans have
been reviewed and updated, to support providers both in and out of hours
and with a focus on system escalation triggers and actions at OPEL 3 and 4.
7.3. A Devon wide UEC Summit was held in early October, to look at the current
and anticipated pressure across Devon, agree solutions and key actions to
be taken. Subsequently, a second meeting was held to focus on the Torbay
and South Devon urgent care system. The agreed actions from these
summits are being progressed.

Page 9

Agenda Item 6

Devon Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Title

South Western Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust (SWASFT)
– Performance update and report

Main aim

To provide an update on projects, performance and activity during
September 2021.

Author

Nicola Moorhouse, Interim Head of Communications and Engagement

1. Background
SWASFT has responsibility for the provision of ambulance services across an area of 10,000 square
miles which is 20% of mainland England. The Trust covers the counties of Cornwall and the Isles of
Scilly, Devon, Dorset, Somerset, Wiltshire, Gloucestershire and the former Avon area (Bristol, Bath,
North and North East Somerset and South Gloucestershire).
The Trust serves a total population of over 5.5 million and is estimated to receive an influx of over 23
million visitors each year. The operational area is predominantly rural but also includes large urban
centres including Bristol, Plymouth, Exeter, Bath, Swindon, Gloucester, Bournemouth and Poole.

2. Performance September 2021
During September the Trust responded to 88,552 incidents across the South West – this was an
average of 2,952 per day and 7,498 incidents more than the same period last year.
The National Ambulance Quality Indicator data published by the NHSE/I for September showed that
SWASFT had the longest Category 1 (CAT 1) and Category 2 (CAT 2) mean response rates in the
country at 11 minutes and 66 minutes respectively.
The challenges we’re facing as a Trust are not felt alone. The report shows that during September
2021, CAT1 and CAT2 response times for all ambulance services across England were the longest
ever since data was first collected in April 2018. The number of 999 calls answered each day was also
the second highest ever, after July 2021.
11.
5
11.
0
10.
5
10.
0

Category 1 Mean
(mins)

9.
5
7.
0
6.
5
6.
0

SWASFT HOSC report November 2021 NM
Page 1 of 6

Page 11

Agenda Item 6

60
0
50
0
40
0
30
0
20
0
10
0
0 to 5
Mins

5 to 10
Mins

10 to 15
Mins

15 to 20
Mins

20 to 25
Mins

25 to 30
Mins

30+
Mins

71.
0
60
6.
61.
0
50
5.
51.
0
40
4.
41.
0
30

Category 2 Mean
(mins)
Mean National
Standard

3.
31.
0
20
2.
21.
0
10
1.

1,60
0
1,40
0
1,20
0
1,00
0

0 to 20
Mins

20 to 40
Mins

40 to 60
Mins

60 to 80
Mins

SWASFT HOSC report November 2021 NM
Page 2 of 6

80 to 100
Mins

100 to 120
Mins

Page 12

120+
Mins

Agenda Item 6
3. Factors impacting on performance
3.1. Demand
The Trust has been experiencing activity increases since the easing of lockdown measures in May
2021, with further rises across June, July and August.
Weekly incidents ran at over 20,000 incidents for 25 consecutive weeks from the start of May,
compared to levels prior to COVID-19 which were around 18,000 incidents per week.
To put this in perspective, during the previous two years (2019/2020) the trust has only reported 2
weeks above 20,000 incidents, both of which fell over the Christmas and New Year period in 2019
when activity is traditionally busier.
Ambulance incident numbers across the South West throughout September continued to be
significantly higher than historic levels. During September we experienced five consecutive days where
daily incident numbers exceeded 3,000 or approximately a new incident every 25 seconds.
To put this into context only 19 individual days in the history of the Trust have exceeded 3,000
incidents and only 6 of those days were outside the busy Christmas and New Year period.
This unprecedented and sustained demand resulted in the trust declaring a major incident on 7
September until 10 September. Moving to a major incident is a decision the Trust does not take lightly
but allows us to better manage and tackle the high levels of demand we are currently facing and
implement a number of measures around resourcing, call handling, triaging patients, and meal breaks.

3.2. Abstraction rates

As seen across other areas of the Healthcare system, SWASFT is experiencing workforce pressures
with reductions in the operational frontline resourcing levels available due to high levels of abstraction.
These abstractions include high levels of sickness (in excess of 10% at present) plus abstractions in
relation to COVID-19 sickness and isolation which are around 5% on top of the sickness at present.
This is limiting the Trust in any ability to increase the operational resources on the road to meet any
surges in demand, especially at this time of the year when annual leave levels are at their peak.

3.3. Handover delays at acute hospitals
By far, the most significant impact on performance is the length of time it’s taking us to hand over many
patients into busy hospitals, which is higher than we’ve ever seen before.
We are currently losing around 750 hours per day to handover delays at hospital emergency
departments, compared to around 400 hours per week two years ago. This results in many
ambulances queuing outside hospitals, and unable to respond to other emergency calls.

SWASFT HOSC report November 2021 NM
Page 3 of 6

Page 13

Agenda Item 6

During w/c 6 September 2021 the Trust lost over 5,609 hours to handover delays in excess of the 15
minute target. That is the equivalent of 510 ambulance shifts being lost (an average of 73 shifts lost per
day).
These levels have become intolerable and it’s an absolute priority for us and for our NHS partners to
reduce these delays, so crews can get back out on the road for other patients.

4. Demand – Devon
The Trust responded to 20,148 incidents across Devon during September which is up by 1,834
compared to the same time last year. This was an average of 672 incidents per day.
On average there were 68 Cat 1 incidents per day, throughout September, requiring a response at
scene. Of these 55.5% received a response within 10 minutes, 80.6% of incidents received a response
within 15 minutes and 98.1% of incidents received a response within 30 minutes.

SWASFT HOSC report November 2021 NM
Page 4 of 6

Page 14

Agenda Item 6
5. Operation Braidwood
As part of the Trust’s wider response to the pandemic, the five fire and rescue services within the south
west, including Devon, continue to support SWASFT by providing a cadre of fire fighters to drive
ambulances and work alongside SWASFT clinicians, known as Operation Braidwood. These fire
fighters, who already have blue light driving skills, have undertaken additional training and hold a skills
passport to ensure they are able to safely support the delivery of patient care alongside SWASFT
crews. The current agreement between SWASFT and the five Fire and Rescue Services will see
Operation Braidwood continue until the end of the year.

6. Community First Responder update
The Devon area is supported by two community first responder teams with two lead
members of staff each – one in North and East Devon and the other in South and West
Devon.

6.1. Community First Responders – North and East Devon





43 volunteer community first responders
6 non-clinical staff responders (ECAs)
2 clinical staff responders (Paramedics)
29 of the community first responders in N&E Devon have also been trained in falls,
supporting patients with non-injury falls. The responders provide good coverage to all areas
of N&E Devon.

6.2. Community First Responders – South and West Devon





45 volunteer community first responders
4 non-clinical staff responders (ECAs)
7 clinical staff responders (Paramedics)
13 of the community first responders in S&W Devon have also been trained in falls,
supporting patients with non-injury falls. The responders provide good coverage to all areas
of S&W Devon.

6.3. Crew Welfare Car at Derriford Hospital, Plymouth
SWASFT asked our local community responder teams to support with staffing welfare cars. The
welfare cars are providing much needed support for the ambulance crews waiting to handover patients
outside busy emergency departments. They are providing both refreshments and an element of
emotional support for our frontline colleagues.
This initiative has been well received by crews who have gone out of their way to pass on their thanks
to the volunteers and the South Western Ambulance Charity. This initiative has provided an opportunity
for them to maintain contact with the frontline crews. The scheme was then extended during the
continued pressures.

SWASFT HOSC report November 2021 NM
Page 5 of 6

Page 15

Agenda Item 6
6.4. Level 3 Award for First Responders on Scene: Ambulance Service
All of our community first responders have been supported to obtain the new FutureQuals Level 3
Award for First Responder on Scene qualification.

6.5. Recruitment
We have identified and made progress with evidence-based recruitment planning to take place in
the near future.

6.6. Devon and Somerset Fire and Rescue Service
Working in partnership with Devon and Somerset Fire and Rescue Service we continue to have a
total of 76 fire co-responders across the whole of Devon, providing a response for our most timecritical patients.

6.7. Defibrillators
We continued the roll out of G5 defibrillators to our responder groups and maintained the required
servicing for the medical devices. Some of these were obtained by funds from the South Western
Ambulance Service Charity following our support, including personally completing a charity skydive.
6.7.1 North and East Devon

In addition to 178 SWASFT package defibrillators (128 community public access defibrillators and
50 static site), the team have supported 222 accredited defibrillators to join The Circuit, the national
defibrillator network connecting defibrillators to NHS ambulance services across the UK.
Hospital Ambulance Liaison Officers (HALO) in place 7 days a week at Royal Devon & Exeter to
support ambulance handovers
6.7.2 South and West Devon

In addition to 124 178 SWASFT package defibrillators (72 community public access defibrillators
and 52 static site) and the team have supported 359 accredited Defibrillators to join The Circuit.
Hospital Ambulance Liaison Officer (HALO) in place 7 days a week at UHP (Derriford) to support
ambulance handovers
Hospital Ambulance Liaison Officer (HALO) in place 7 days a week at Torbay to support ambulance
handovers

6.8. Other support
Our volunteers moved a number of vehicles primarily supporting the prompt roll out of the new
double crewed ambulances and were also involved in moving vehicles to support the G7 Summit.
We are engaging with our volunteers to ensure they access the vaccinations available to them and
are supporting those are affected by COVID-19.

SWASFT HOSC report November 2021 NM
Page 6 of 6

Page 16

Agenda Item 7

02 November 2021
Torbay and Devon Safeguarding Adults Partnership
Annual Report 2020-21
Covering Brief for: Devon Health and Adult Care Scrutiny Committee
Meeting Date/Time: Thursday 11 November 2021, 10:30

Purpose of agenda item:
It is a statutory requirement, under the Care Act 2014, for each Safeguarding Adults Board
(SAB) to produce and publish an Annual Report.
It is also a requirement for each SAB to present their Annual Report to their Health and
Wellbeing Board(s).
As in previous years, the TDSAP also presents the Annual Report to Scrutiny Committee
and Cabinet.
This Annual Report was presented to the Devon Health and Wellbeing Board on 28
October 2021 and will be presented at Cabinet on 08 December 2021. In Torbay, the
report will go before the Torbay Health and Wellbeing Board on 09 December 2021.
More detailed information about the work of the TDSAP is available on the TDSAP
website: Home - Torbay and Devon Safeguarding Adults Partnership
1.
1.1

Introduction
The full annual report summarises TDSAP safeguarding activity undertaken
throughout 2020-21.

1.2

As in previous years, we have attempted to ensure that the 2020-21 Annual Report
is concise, informative and provides a level of information to enable readers to fully
understand the work of the partnership during a very difficult year for all concerned.

1.3

The Annual Report will be published on the TDSAP website, alongside full details of
Safeguarding Adult Reviews (SARs), which we have published during this and
previous years.

1.4

Work is currently underway to produce easy read versions of the Annual Report and
this is being completed in partnership with our Community Reference Subgroup.

1

Page 17

Agenda Item 7
2.
2.1.

Safeguarding Adults Partnership - Background
The TDSAP is the strategic lead body for safeguarding, with an overriding objective
to prevent and reduce the risk of significant harm to adults with care and support
needs, from abuse or other types of harm or exploitation.

2.2

The former Devon Safeguarding Adults Partnership and Torbay Safeguarding
Adults Board merged in December 2020, therefore creating a new joint Torbay &
Devon Safeguarding Adults Partnership (TDSAP).

2.3

The TDSAP is completely independent, with an independent chair, Paul Northcott.
Paul was appointed to the role in December 2020.

2.4

The TDSAP is the collective name for the partners that work with the Safeguarding
Adults Board (SAB) to safeguard adults across Torbay and Devon.

2.5

The TDSAP acts as the key mechanism for agreeing how these agencies work
together to safeguard and promote the safety and wellbeing of adults at risk and/or
in vulnerable situations. It does this by co-ordinating what each of the TDSAP
partners does and makes sure that they do it effectively.

3.
3.1

Legislative Context
The Care Act 2014 requires that local authorities hold the lead responsibilities for
safeguarding adults. The TDSAP acts as the strategic mechanism for ensuring that
all partners work together successfully.

3.2

The Care Act 2014 sets out that there are 3 key statutory requirements for the
Partnership:
3.2.1 To deliver and publish an Annual Report
3.2.2 To ensure that the Partnership appropriately conducts Safeguarding Adult
Reviews (SARs)
3.2.3 To develop and publish a Strategic Business Plan

4.
4.1

Summary and Moving Forward
The period covered by the report ends on 31 March 2021. Covid-19 has had an
impact on the work of the partnership, it has brought many challenges, though
despite these additional pressures, all partners have continued to work effectively
together and responded well when being held to account by the TDSAP. Partners
have shown continuous commitment to our key strategic areas and provided a good
level of assurance throughout the year.

4.2

As mentioned in 3.2.3, the TDSAP is required to produce a Strategic Business Plan.

4.3

The plan for 2021–2024 has been developed and published on our website. Here is
a link: Strategic Business Plan 2021-2024 - Torbay and Devon Safeguarding Adults
Partnership

2

Page 18

Torbay & Devon Safeguarding Adults Partnership
(TDSAP)
2020-21 Annual Report

Page 19

1

Contents
Section 1: Chair’s Foreword ....................................................................................... 3
1.1 Paul Northcott – Chair of the Torbay and Devon Safeguarding Adults
Partnership ............................................................................................................. 3
1.2 Julie Foster – Former Chair of the Torbay Safeguarding Adults Board ............ 3
1.3 Sian Walker – Former Chair of the Devon Safeguarding Adults Partnership .... 4
Section 2: Our Role and Purpose ............................................................................... 5
Section 3: Our Structure ............................................................................................. 6
Section 4: Our Partnership Members ......................................................................... 6
Section 5: Safeguarding Adult Reviews ..................................................................... 7
Section 6: TDSAP Sub-Groups .................................................................................. 9
6.1 Community Reference Group ........................................................................... 9
6.2 Learning & Improvement Sub-Group ................................................................ 9
6.3 Mental Capacity Act Sub-Group ..................................................................... 10
6.4 Operational Delivery Group ............................................................................ 10
Section 7: TDSAP Priorities 2020/21........................................................................ 11
Section 8: Our Work During 2020/21........................................................................ 12
Section 9: Looking Ahead ........................................................................................ 13

Page 20

2

Section 1: Chair’s Foreword

1.1 Paul Northcott – Chair of the Torbay and Devon Safeguarding
Adults Partnership (TDSAP)

The merger of both the Torbay and Devon Safeguarding Adults
Boards into the TDSAP has presented a unique opportunity to
strengthen the partnership and build on the previous successes that have been
achieved in both areas. I would like to thank the two previous Chairs and the senior
managers for all of their commitment and vision in progressing the merger.
Joint working opportunities have enabled us to progress the work that has been
detailed in this report whilst also enabling us to plan for the challenges that we will
encounter in the future.
The new priorities for the partnership will ensure that we focus on those areas that
will improve safeguarding practice and ensure that we are effectively working
together to deliver services that meet the needs of vulnerable individuals and the
wider community. Community and service user engagement continues to be
developed and is seen by the partnership as essential in building on the progress
that has been achieved and informing future practice.
1.2 Julie Foster – Former Chair of the Torbay Safeguarding Adults
Board
Like many other organisations across the world, Torbay
Safeguarding Adults Board has had to adjust the way it operates
during the current pandemic. Meetings have had to be convened
virtually and some of our activities suspended temporarily whilst pressing priorities to
safeguard a much wider population were actioned.
The responsiveness and flexibility of our partners has been fantastic and, despite
the need to work differently, safeguarding adult’s activity has continued relentlessly
and those at risk from harm have been protected. Steps have been taken to publish
the help available in cases of both domestic and financial abuse - issues which
caused a particular concern during lockdown. We have also taken steps to monitor
the impact of very busy health and care systems on hospital discharge and care at
home to ensure adults at risk do not fall through gaps.
It is to the credit of our senior managers that the plans to develop a new
Safeguarding Adults Partnership between Devon and Torbay have reached fruition
during the past year. Torbay is keen to maintain its own identity and has its own
particular opportunities and threats, but it makes sense to build on our close links
with Devon to provide a consistent approach across the area and to reduce the
duplication and resource requirements of two separate Boards

Page 21

3

1.3 Siân Walker – Former Chair of the Devon Safeguarding Adults
Partnership

The pandemic had a massive impact on all of us, especially on
vulnerable people living in Devon’s communities. Whilst, like
others, we had to adjust the way we worked, the Devon Safeguarding Adults Board
continued to function well, adapting to more regular updates from statutory partners
from the Council, Police. NHS and the voluntary and community sector. This
provided information and data which enabled us to take immediate action where
appropriate. The Board continued to function with virtual meetings but work behind
the scenes changed as Board Support staff were deployed to front line services,
importantly to resource services to support effective safeguarding. We maintained a
good overview and I felt assured that safeguarding remained a top priority by all
partners. I worked alongside other Safeguarding Chairs in the south-west so we
could all learn from one another, adapt and be agile to these new circumstances. I
ensured that we maintained our ability to respond well to the very many
circumstances in which people found themselves, both citizens and professionals
across the partnership.as we supported them all in their Covid response. Plans were
progressed during this time to merge the Devon & Torbay Safeguarding Adults
Boards, something which I fully supported in the knowledge that our partners worked
across both Council areas, and it enabled a more dynamic and efficient way of
working.
I was delighted, after chairing the Devon Safeguarding Partnership for 5 years, to
leave it in a far healthier position. I am grateful for the opportunity I had to work
across our county and delighted to hand over to Paul Northcott with the newly
merged Partnership Board.

Page 22

4

Section 2: Our Role and Purpose
The Torbay & Devon Safeguarding Adults Partnership (TDSAP) is the collective name for
the partners that work with the Board to safeguard adults across Torbay and Devon.
The Torbay & Devon Safeguarding Adults Partnership (TDSAP) was founded in the
final quarter of 2010/21 by Devon County Council and Torbay and South Devon NHS
Foundation Trust as a requirement of the Care Act 2014. It provides strategic leadership
for adult safeguarding across Torbay & Devon. Prior to the creation of the TDSAP there
were two separate Boards operating in Torbay and Devon; the Devon Safeguarding
Adults Partnership and the Torbay Safeguarding Adults Board.
The TDSAP is completely independent, with an independent chair.
The core objective of the Partnership, set out in section 43(2) of the Care Act 2014, is to
help and protect adults in its area in cases where an adult has care and support needs
and;
- They are experiencing, or at risk of, abuse or neglect; and
- As a result of those care and support needs, they are unable to protect themselves
from either the risk of or the experience of abuse or neglect
The TDSAP acts as the key mechanism for agreeing how agencies work together to
safeguard and promote the safety and wellbeing of adults at risk and/or in vulnerable
situations. It does this by co-ordinating what each of the TDSAP members does and
makes sure that they do it effectively.
The TDSAP multi-agency partnership, aims to promote awareness and understanding of
abuse and neglect among service users, carers, professionals, care providers and the
wider community. It works to generate community interest and engagement in
safeguarding to make sure that ‘safeguarding is everyone’s business’.
The TDSAP also commissions Safeguarding Adults Reviews for people who have
experienced poor safeguarding outcomes, to ensure that lessons are learned for the
future.

Page 23

5

Section 3: Our Structure
The TDSAP established the below structure to undertake the work on behalf of the
Partnership. These meetings are supported by the Partnership Business Manager and
Partnership Co-Ordinator. Each sub-group has a regularly reviewed Terms of Reference.
When required, Task & Finish groups are established to deliver key elements of work
commissioned by and reported to the Partnership. These Task and Finish groups
comprise of representatives nominated by Partnership members who have sufficient
knowledge and skills to contribute to the required task.

Section 4: Our Partnership Members
The TDSAP has representatives from the following organisations; Torbay & South Devon
NHS Foundation Trust, Northern Devon Healthcare NHS Trust, Royal Devon & Exeter
NHS Trust, University Hospitals Plymouth NHS Trust, NHS Devon Clinical Commissioning
Group, NHS England/Improvement, Torbay Council, Devon County Council, East Devon
District Council, Devon Partnership Trust, Livewell Southwest, South Western Ambulance
Service Foundation Trust, Devon & Cornwall Police, HM Prison & Probation Service,
Devon & Somerset Fire & Rescue Service, Care Quality Commission, Living Options,
Healthwatch, Trading Standards, Housing and The Department of Work and Pensions.

Page 24

6

Section 5: Safeguarding Adult Reviews
The Torbay & Devon Safeguarding Adults Partnership (TDSAP) must arrange a
Safeguarding Adults Review (SAR) when an adult in its area dies as a result of abuse or
neglect, whether known or suspected, and there is a concern that partner agencies could
have worked more effectively to protect the adult.
The TDSAP must also arrange a SAR if an adult in its area has not died, but the SAB knows
or suspects that the adult has experienced serious abuse or neglect. Boards may also
arrange for a SAR in any other situations involving an adult in its area with needs for care
and support.
Consistent SAR themes from 2020/21 referrals include:





Mental Health
Suicide
Self-Neglect
COVID Lockdown Impact

The SAR Core Group continues to meet quarterly and has done so throughout the COVID
pandemic. The Core Group is attended by representatives from partner organisations
including CCG, NHS, Local Authorities and the Police.
SAR Activity During 2020/21:
 There have been 24 SAR referrals during the period of 2020-2021.
 10 SAR referrals were received by Devon Safeguarding Adults Partnership. 3 SAR
referrals were received by Torbay Safeguarding Adults Board. 11 SAR referrals were
received by the TDSAP.
 There have been 4 SAR Learning Events across Torbay and Devon
In 2020-21 the Devon Safeguarding Adults Partnership published one SAR – ‘SAR Ben’.
Summary of SAR Ben:
Ben was 57 years old when he died. He was reported missing on 3 rd November
2018. His body was found off the coast of Devon on 5th November 2018. He had not
been seen for several days before this.
Ben had Huntington’s Disease. Huntington’s Disease is a relentlessly progressive
neurodegenerative disorder which, for Ben, resulted in complex care needs. The
difficulties Ben experienced as a result of the impact on his frontal lobe resulting from
his Huntington’s Disease, impacted on his ability to cope with daily life.
Given Ben’s complex needs and associated risks, his care and support needed to be
considered in a multi-agency and multi-disciplinary way.

Page 25

7

At the time of his death Ben was being supported by several agencies. Ben’s family
held a view that a different approach to working alongside Ben was needed.
Learning Point: Experience, skills and confidence of staff working with
Huntington’s Disease
The experience, skills and confidence of staff working with someone who has a
complex long-term condition plays a big part in the success of such support. In Ben’s
case more could have been done to utilise the expertise of both services and family
members with relevant experience. Ben was well known to the Huntington’s Disease
regional advisor who could have been contacted to assist with care planning.
However, this did not happen. Staff should have proactively engaged the support of
condition-specific specialist services in their assessment and planning of care. There
should have been greater focus on Ben’s strengths and personal goals.
Learning Point: Mental health commissioning arrangements
The review highlights the disjointed nature of Devon mental health commissioning
arrangements for people with a diagnosis of Huntington’s Disease. In Devon there
are several commissioned services within the community, both for long term
conditions and mental health, which may be able to support a person’s mental health
needs. The suitability of the service would be dependent on a person’s presentation,
stage and primary need and diagnosis. In Ben’s case, services available appeared to
be based on diagnosis rather than need. As the Community Mental Health service in
Devon is not commissioned to provide a single identified ‘neuropsychiatric care’
service, Ben did not receive community mental health support. There does not
appear to have been consideration of alternative services to provide support. There
is an apparent lack of awareness across the health and care system regarding the
range of services available for people with a diagnosis of Huntington’s Disease, the
criteria, the limitations of the services, and how these services can be accessed.
Learning Point: Risk assessment and risk management
The perception that multi-agency risk management can’t occur unless under the
auspices of undertaking a safeguarding enquiry needs addressing. In Ben’s case
there was a significant delay in getting a multi-disciplinary team response to risk.
There was a difference of opinion across organisations around what are acceptable
levels of risk for Ben. There needs to be more regular use of multi-disciplinary risk
management meetings with clear outcomes and actions attributed to all agencies.
Multi-agency risk assessments must be of a sufficiently high standard and include
feedback from key agencies and significant others in the person’s life.
Further information on TDSAP SARs, including copies of previously published SARs, please
visit our website.
For more information on how to raise a concern please visit our website.

Page 26

8

Section 6: TDSAP Sub-Groups

6.1 Community Reference Group
The newly formed Joint TDSAP Community Reference Group (CRG) includes people
recruited from local Voluntary, Community and Social Enterprise (VCSE) and people with
lived experience of the safeguarding process, across the TDSAP area.
The CRG has grown from strength to strength undertaking co-production, consultation and
engagement work. Methods to gather intelligence have included focused task and finish
groups, on-line and telephone surveys and varied user led dialogue. The CRG has
provided new ways for people who have been through safeguarding processes to input
directly into the work of the partnership.
The CRG provides feedback on key priorities for future work, is raising awareness of
safeguarding with the adult population and two-way communication channels with
representatives within and across the VCSE.
During 2021 the CRG brought the voice of the service user into the Annual Partnership
Development Day and ensured that the voice of the people we support, remains central to
the planning of future partnership priorities.

6.2 Learning & Improvement Sub-Group
The Learning and Improvement Subgroup has continued to undertake and complete key
areas of work, despite meeting less frequently than usual in 2020/21 due to partner
agencies responding to health and social priorities related to the COVID 19
pandemic. These areas of work include the Partnership reviewing, retendering and
awarding a contract to provide a comprehensive range of safeguarding adults and mental
capacity act training. The majority of the training during the year, was delivered virtually due
to the COVID 19 pandemic. The safeguarding adults training strategy has remained a key
focus following its approval last year. Assurance was sought from partners regarding
individual progress in order to develop a partnership wide implementation plan.

Page 27

9

6.3 Mental Capacity Act Sub-Group
Over the previous 12 -month period the work of the Mental Capacity Act Subgroup
experienced some disruption as a consequence of the Covid19 pandemic response.
Although some of the sub group meetings were stood down, to allow partners to concentrate
on their COVID 19 pandemic responses, the existing work plan was regularly reviewed and
updated once the group was in a position to reconvene.
There is renewed energy amongst our partners for collaborative working wherever possible
and a recognition that there continues to be an ongoing need to increase legal literacy
across operational staff groups to protect the wellbeing and rights of people we support
across Torbay and Devon.
The priority work will continue to be focussed on the following areas:





Increasing understanding and application of Legal Literacy across partner organisations
The Liberty Protection Safeguards which are expected to come into force in 2022.
The use of lawful restrictive measures
The Mental Capacity Act 2005 learning outcomes from SARs

The group continues to work in tandem with the Learning and Improvement Sub Group and
the interaction between these 2 sub-groups is regularly reviewed to ensure this
organisational arrangement is fit for purpose to help deliver the strategic priorities of the
partnership.
6.4 Operational Delivery Group
The Operational Delivery Group (ODG) oversees all of the above sub-groups and reports
directly to the Partnership Board. In 2021/21, following a review of the Safeguarding
Insight Data, the ODG established four Task and Finish groups to review the data and
suggest areas for improvements. The four groups focused on; Care Homes, Types of
Abuse, Blue Light Services and Health Referrals.
The Partnership has been supporting the Local Authorities to help inform a national
picture in relation to the COVID 19 pandemic. The results of which are shared back to
local authorities and our Partnership to inform future learning opportunities, via an Insights
Data Report.
The ODG continues to review and consider developing areas of adults safeguarding to
ensure that partners are well informed to respond to emerging themes and trends.

Page 28

10

Section 7: TDSAP Priorities 2020/21
Prior to the establishment of the TDSAP in Dec 2020, the Torbay Safeguarding Adults
Board and the Devon Safeguarding Adults Partnership had separate strategic priorities
held within their own business plans.
Former Torbay Safeguarding Adults Board (TSAB)
The TSAB Business Plan was for the period 2018-2021and included the below priorities:
1. Embedding Making Safeguarding Personal
2. Learning from Safeguarding Adult Reviews
3. The Interface Between Safeguarding Adults at Risk and Domestic Abuse /
Sexual Violence
4. Preventative and Creative Solutions
5. Mental Capacity Act
6. Market Shaping and Commissioning

Former Devon Safeguarding Adults Partnership (DSAP)
The DSAP Business Plan for 2020-2021 included the below priorities:
1. Safeguarding within the Covid-19 Pandemic:
 To work in partnership to ensure continuity of safeguarding adults
business.
2. Living Well:
 The DSAP Board aims to support partners to deliver preventative
actions, to safeguard those with care and support needs through
learning together and delivering change.
Copies of both of the above business plans can be found on our partnership website.

Page 29

11

Section 8: Our Work During 2020/21

COVID-19 had a significant impact on both Safeguarding Adults Boards and the newly
merged Board and the core work that continued during the pandemic. A decision was
made, in consultation with partners, to re-prioritise and strategically pause some work, to
enable partners to concentrate on their pandemic response as a priority.
Despite adopting a focus on statutory assurance and support, the Boards continued to
maintain their Care Act 2014 obligations for safeguarding adults with regular assurance
gained from their key safeguarding partners.
Partners provided assurance reports to the Independent Chairs including updates on their
COVID 19 crisis response. This approach ensured that partners provided proportionate
strategic overview during the pandemic.
In December 2021 the Devon Safeguarding Adults Partnership and the Torbay
Safeguarding Adults Board merged to form the TDSAP. This included a successful
process to appoint a new Independent Chair to the TDSAP. The merger was completed in
Quarter 4 of 2020/21 and since then the TDSAP has been working to ensure their policies
and procedures are aligned across the new partnership.
The TDSAP has undertaken a review of Safeguarding and Mental Capacity Act training to
ensure the offer from the TDSAP is up to date and in line with legal literacy. The TDSAP
increased safeguarding training capacity for partners to meet increased demand following
an awareness campaign launched in 2020.
The TDSAP undertook a review of the referral process for SARs as a result of an
increased number of SARs being received. An evaluation criteria was introduced to
ensure the process is as effective and efficient as possible.
Learning from SARS continues to be a priority piece of work for the TDSAP going into
2021/22 and beyond, as detailed in the Strategic Priorities 2021/2024.

Page 30

12

Section 9: Looking Ahead
The Strategic Priorities for the TDSAP have been agreed and published in the 20212024 TDSAP Business Plan.
A copy of the strategic priorities can be found by clicking here: Strategic Priorities
2021/2024

The priorities are detailed below:

Strategic Priority

To embed the learning from
Safeguarding Adult Reviews
(SARs) into organisational
practice

What we will do to deliver this priority


Partners will contribute to the SAR process and play a key role to
identify the relevant learning


We will embed a process to identify immediate learning and
implement this swiftly


We will ensure the learning is SMART with key success criteria in
place


Partners will provide strong evidence to assure the TDSAP that
sustained improvements have been embedded


Promote multi-organisational communication, ensuring
cooperation as an underlying key principle


Develop swift and dynamic processes for delivery of
Safeguarding Adults Reviews


Each Safeguarding Adults Review will have an underlying
principle to ‘Focus on the Learning’ for each organisation


We will regularly monitor, identify and resolve reoccurring SAR
themes to prevent reoccurrence

Page 31

13

Strategic Priority

What we will do to deliver this priority


To work with partners to
better understand and
reduce the risk of ‘Hidden
Harm’, especially in the
context of COVID 19

Support and encourage all safeguarding partners to focus on the
‘Hidden Harm’ that is usually out of sight from public view and often
not recognised or reported
Ensure that the emphasis is on having a culture of ‘spotting early
signs’ to prevent risks escalating




Use COVID 19 data and information to seek assurance that
partners are all uncovering and responding to hidden harm


Ensure that all safeguarding partners who work with people who
have needs for care and support, exercise professional curiosity and
take appropriate action
Embed the theme of ‘professional curiosity’ within multi agency
case audits (MACA)




Develop and deliver a multi-organisational workshop and
awareness campaign for partners and service representatives to
better understand, encourage and support professional curiosity and
escalation within their organisations
To improve outcomes for
people with needs for care
and support by finding the
right solution for them



To seek assurance that partners and service representatives
work together to establish more effective coordination to achieve
person centred solutions


Work with partners and service representatives to better
understand and embed a creative approach to finding effective
solutions for people with complex lives


We will develop and share key data and information to help
develop effective communications and co-ordination between
partner organisations, including strengthening links with the districts
and community safety partners


We will focus on preventative strategies to better understand how
we can avoid the need for safeguarding intervention


We will work with service representatives and commissioning
partners to better understand people’s needs and support them to
achieve their desired outcomes


To have regular assurance from partners that people are
safeguarded during and after the COVID-19 pandemic and that
attention to safeguarding continues in accordance with statutory
responsibilities, recognising that some people will be put at greater
risk as a consequence of the pandemic

Page 32

14

Strategic Priority
Improving Involvement and
Engagement with people in
receipt of safeguarding
services

What we will do to deliver this priority


We will build on past Safeguarding Awareness Campaigns by
targeting communications within our communities to raise further
awareness of safeguarding



We will learn from COVID 19 experiences and use this feedback
to shape future engagement


We will work with key partners to improve the interface with
children's services especially for those who transition to adult
services


To seek assurance that all partners are involving and listening to
people about their experience of safeguarding


Ensuring that all people are listening to, valuing and responding
to relatives, friends and people in communities
The partnership will have a focus on ‘Making Safeguarding
Personal’ to ensure that safeguarding is person-led and outcomefocussed




We will continue to invest and engage with community groups to
ensure the ‘voice of the person’ is central to partnership working

Page 33

15

Agenda Item 8
ACH/21/140
Health and Adult Care Scrutiny Committee
11 November 2021
FINANCE AND PERFORMANCE MID YEAR UPDATE
Report of the Chief Officer for Adult Care and Health, Devon County Council
Please note that the following recommendations are subject to consideration and
determination by the Committee before taking effect.
Recommendations:
1.

That the Health and Adult Care Scrutiny Committee receives this report to
support its scrutiny of adult social care performance in Devon County Council
and to understand progress towards delivering performance targets within the
budget allocated to it.

2.

The committee is also asked to note the ongoing national challenges set out in
the report.

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
1.
Summary
1.1 To provide a mid-year update on the finance and performance of Adult Care
and Health
2.

Introduction

2.1 Adults social care is a springboard and an opportunity for so many people, it is
life changing and life giving, not a problem that needs fixing. It is delivered by a
skilled and compassionate workforce that needs investing in.
2.2 There is a huge opportunity to put adult social care on a sustainable footing; in
Devon alone the economic scale of adult social care is £782M (Skills for Care).
2.3 Adult Care and Health continues to play a leading role in the Integrated Care
System Devon as it develops and delivers a single set of system agreed
priorities. Work at the place level across the four DCC facing Local Care
Partnerships is evolving and we are seeing a new relationship emerging
between statutory services and the VCSE.
2.4 The long-awaited reform of Adult Social Care has begun, and we expect a
consultation document this year that will provide more clarity on funding in the
short and longer-term, but there are concerns that funding will not be provided

Page 35

Agenda Item 8
to transform adult social care or stabilise and sustain the provider market and
workforce.
2.5 Adult Care and Health remains in COVID response and is facing significant
challenges. There are many of our internal staff who remain redeployed into
other teams or their business-as-usual activity and work around transformation
paused or their work impacted by COVID-19 pressures.
2.6 We have reviewed and refreshed our priorities which had been agreed in the
summer, and we are working through those with our teams to ensure we have
the right people aligned to each one. Part of this work will be the gradual
release of people who have been redeployed to the Tactical Provider Response
Cell, as we recruit more temporary staff to cover that service.
2.7 In recent weeks the South West region as a whole has seen a sharp rise in
COVID admission with levels above the London region. The Devon health and
social care system is under extreme pressure due to high demand for services,
sustained demand for covid beds, pressure on staffing and the need for social
care exceeding the available capacity.
2.8 In the mid-year update report last year it was noted the year was like no other.
That is the context and prelude to the expectation of a winter like no other. The
workforce is fatigued and exhausted by the last 18 months, a system operating
at capacity is facing the prospect of a sustained COVID resurgence and a
particularly bad flu season.
2.9 The CQC has raised concerns about the potential impact on quality that this
might have.
2.10 In the face of all these pressures, work is taking place locally to develop
solutions, including our Proud to Care campaigns that remain our primary
method of supporting our external providers to recruit and retain a sufficient
workforce. We are also working with Members so they have the tools to be
active in their communities in encouraging careers in care.
2.11 The Love Care programme builds on our commitment to improving health and
care services. During the pandemic we have invested an extra £45 million in
adult care and health and helped raise the minimum wage for care workers to
£10 an hour. Alongside health and local authority partners have developed a
range of training initiatives, including a pioneering Nursing Associate Apprentice
Programme.

Page 36

Agenda Item 8
3.

Key messages from the Association of Adult Social Services

3.1 This annual survey of Directors on Adult Social Services describes a
challenging picture for adult social care, both for those who work within the
sector and those who reply on the care it provides:
3.2 Under investment means that more people are in need of social care and
support, but fewer are getting it and many are getting less.
3.3 Delays to assessments and reviews are having a detrimental impact on
people’s lives.
3.4 Government funding through the Adult Social Care Precept and Social Care
Grant are insufficient to fund the costs of Demographic Pressures and the
National Living Wage (NLW).
3.5 Local authorities are increasingly reliant on local taxation and short-term and
unsustainable funding sources.
3.6 We must prioritise funding for care and support for working age adults as well
as for older people.
3.7 There is a growing disconnect between increasing adult social need and the
financial ability and confidence of Directors (on behalf of local authorities) to
meet that need.
3.8 Directors want to prioritise investment in earlier intervention and prevention and
new ways of working, but do not have adequate resources to do so.
3.9 Much of the voluntary, community and social enterprise (VCSE) sector is at risk
over the next year.
3.10 Care markets have been further hit by the pandemic and there is an impending
crisis in the retention of social care staff.
3.11 We must reward as well as recognise the role that staff in adult social care play.
3.12 13% of people are being offered care and support such as residential care that
they would not have chosen, due to recruitment and retention issues.
3.13 There has been a significant increase in the number of home care hours
delivered in local authority areas.
3.14 The number of hours of care that are needed locally but that there is not the
capacity to deliver has doubled over the last six-month period.

Page 37

Agenda Item 8
4

Adult Care and Health mid-year finance and performance update

4.1 Adult Care and Health at month 6 is showing an overspend of £5.193m subject
to the achievement of £3.204m of management actions, most of which is
budgeted disability savings. The position is a £43k improvement as reported at
month 5.
4.2 At month 6 we are overall, currently serving 356 less clients than budgeted for
but there are c.440 awaiting care which if filled, would add around £4million to
costs in a full year.
4.3 A total of £1.352m savings have been achieved as at month 6, an addition of a
net £5k versus the previous month.
Adults Month 6 Position Statement
Budget

Projected
Outturn

£000

£000

Month 6
Over /
Mngmt
Under
Action
£000

Older People
Physical Disability
Learning Disability (incl Autistic Spectrum Conditions)
Central & Care Management and Support (Localities)
Other (incl Rapid Response / SCR / Safeguarding and WD)
In House (Older People & Learning Disability)

105,958
23,790
90,641
26,063
6,056
8,218

108,346
23,822
93,631
26,529
9,343
7,605

2,388
32
2,990
466
3,287
(613)

Total For Adult Care Operations and Health

260,726

269,276

8,550

11,513
18,335

11,529
18,166

16
(169)

290,574

298,971

8,397

Adult Commissioning & Health
Mental Health

5

£000

Over /
Under

Month 5
Variance

Diff
Over /
Under

£000

£000

£000

2,388
32
2,990
466
98
(613)

2,660
(160)
2,841
580
(29)
(629)

(3,189)

5,361

5,263

98

(15)

16
(184)

167
(194)

(151)
10

(3,204)

5,193

5,236

(43)

(3,189)

(272)
192
149
(114)
127
16

Adult Care Operations

5.1 The forecast overspend is primary due to increased volumes of people served
with Learning Disability or Autism and for older people due to increases in the
number of nursing home placements where we are serving 31 people more
than budgeted.
5.2 Despite an overall reduction in the number of people served, down 290 from
month 5, we continue to see a rise in the numbers of people served to meet
their Learning Disability or Autism needs (up 63 from month 5).
5.3 We are now serving 104 more people than budgeted for with a Learning
Disability or Autism.

6

Adult Commissioning

Page 38

Agenda Item 8
6.1 A forecast outturn of £16k overspend which is primarily attributable to additional
agency costs for covering critical positions. The forecast outturn has improved
by £151k since last month largely as a result of staff working within areas
funded in other ways such as general covid funding and contributions from the
Infection Control Grant.
6.2 A forecast outturn of £184k underspend which is primarily due to lower
numbers of residential placements, although this remains a volatile position at
this point in the year. This position is a decrease in the underspend of £10k
from last month.
7

Central Government Funding during the pandemic in 2021-22

7.1 During 2021-22, locally we have received central government COVID-19
pandemic related funding equating to c£24.3m. This has been a combination of
the COVID-19 grant, the Infection Control and Testing Fund and the COVID-19
Outbreak Management Fund.
7.2 In addition to this as a system we have received further funding through the
Hospital Discharge Fund.
8

DCC Adult Health and Care comparative performance

8.1 The information below provides a snapshot comparison of activity levels as at
the end of September 2020 and September 2021.
8.2 The number of people in receipt of personal care has increased minimally by 13
to 3217 (0.4%) but the number of personal care hours commissioned weekly
has increased by 515 (1.6%) to 32295.
8.3 This is symptomatic of the increasing ill health of those receiving care and the
complexity of the care they need.
8.4 The number of personal care hours marked as ‘unallocated’ has risen by 2698
(88.9%) to 5734 hours. This includes personal care delivered in other ways
such as temporary residential placements or personal care delivered by rapid
response teams or social care reablement teams.
8.5 There has been an increase in the number of people receiving enabling
support, up 132 (5.3%) to 2608. There has been a decrease in the numbers of
hours delivered, down 884 (2.8%) to 30659.
8.6 At the end of September 2021, we were serving less working aged adults
(0.6%) and less older adults (3.7%) than at the same point last year.

Page 39

Agenda Item 8
8.7 People being supported in long-term residential and nursing care placements
has remained relatively stable with an increase of only 48 (1.5%) to 3156. This
is likely due to changing preferences due to the pandemic and an increased
desire for people to receive care at home. We are seeing this in the increased
and unprecedented requests for home care.
8.8 There has been a continued reduction in the numbers of people supported by
day care centres as restriction due to the pandemic continue to impact services.
440 people, down 29 (6.2%) are attending day care centres as part of
commissioned packages of care.
8.9 We have seen a 27% increase in the number of safeguarding concerns, up
1475 to 6940. This is likely due to an increased awareness of safeguarding and
how to report a concern. There has subsequently been a 19.3% increase in the
number safeguarding enquiries up 204 to 1264.
8.10 The proportion of people with a learning disability in employment has remained
stable, 7% in 2020 to 6.9% in 2021. This remains an area of key importance
and continued work to promote employment opportunities for people with
disabilities.
8.11 The corresponding employment indicator for people with mental health needs
has decreased slightly from 8.4% to 7.4%.
8.12 The proportion of people with a learning disability living in their own home or
with their family has increased to 78.5% from 72.2%.
8.13 The corresponding accommodation indicator for people with mental health
needs has increased to 73.6% from 70.2%.
8.14 As of the 20 October 2021 there have been 558 outbreaks across social care
providers in Devon and 322 fatalities.
Jennie Stephens
Chief Officer for Adult Care and Health, Devon County Council
Electoral Divisions: All
Councillor James McInnes
Cabinet Member for Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care and Health Services
Contact for Enquiries: James Martin
Tel No: 01392 383000
Background Paper: Nil

Page 40

Agenda Item 9
Health and Adult Care Scrutiny Committee
11th November 2021

Service Delivery for Public Health Devon: In-Year Briefing
Report of the Director of Public Health
Recommendation: Health and Adult Care Scrutiny is asked to note the update on the
delivery of public health services in 2021.
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
1.

Background

1.1. This report summarises the position on the delivery of public health service during
2021-22. Since the beginning of the Pandemic Public Health Devon has played a
significant leadership role in the ongoing response to Covid-19. Public Health Devon as
part of the Covid-19 response includes the establishment of the Devon and Torbay
Health Protection Board and the Team Devon Local Outbreak Engagement Board.
2.

The delivery of the Council’s strategic objectives: public health and health
protection

2.1

Public Health Devon has been at the forefront of the local and regional response to the
challenges presented by the coronavirus pandemic.

2.2 Specifically, Public Health Devon has lead the Covid-19 tactical response through a
multi-agency Tactical Management Group (TMG), which was chaired by the Director of
Public Health. This has enabled Devon County Council to:




mobilise a rapid response across all key Council services;
co-ordinate effort across the Local Authority;
lead work with District Council partners, with the NHS, the police and other
partners;
 establish a Devon Local Contacting Tracing Service and a Devon Community Testing
Programme
 use the learning from the ‘Doing What Matters’ programme to support and develop
high-quality decision-making and organisational response.

2.3 The Tactical Management Group has been able to take swift decisions, with
appropriate governance, about the deployment of additional resources and actions to
help control the spread of the virus.
2.4 Public Health Devon has since established and provided leadership for:





The Devon Local Outbreak Management Plan
The Devon and Torbay Covid-19 Health Protection Board
Team Devon Local Outbreak Engagement Board
Devon Tactical Management Group.

2.5 As part of this, Public Health Devon has had to develop with key partners a series of
standard operating procedures to guide services in responding in a wide range of
settings in the event of local outbreaks.
2.6 Public Health Devon has drawn extensively on its expertise in intelligence and health
protection and the capability of the Emergency Planning team to respond to the
unprecedented challenges posed by the pandemic.

Page 41

Agenda Item 9
3.

The delivery of the Council’s strategic objectives: public health and health
improvement

3.1 Public Health’s commissioned services continue to innovate to do what they can to meet
people’s needs. Commissioned services continue to offer face-to-face services for
people that need to be seen but have also created opportunities for people to have their
needs assessed and met remotely.
3.2 Both Public Health Nursing and Substance Misuse services have faced significant
staffing challenges in terms of recruitment and retention.
3.3 Commissioners and providers have worked together to vary contracts as necessary to
reflect the new ways of working required to deliver against the backdrop of a pandemic
and together are reviewing the lessons learned from the changes that have been
introduced to ensure the positives are identified and retained.

4.

Delivery of the budget in line with the previously agreed budget

4.1

The work of Public Health Devon - and all of its commissioned services - are funded
from within a ring-fenced grant that is paid directly to Devon County Council from the
Department of Health and Social Care (DHSC). There are no actual or projected
overspends to report against budget projections at the mid-year point.

4.2

There are underspends emerging at the mid-year point for two reasons:


As a result of the pandemic, fewer people overall have accessed services in both
General Practice and in community pharmacies



Public Health Devon has utilised the central Government Covid-19 funding,
Contain Outbreak Management Funding (COMF), to support staffing resource and
some services during the pandemic, funding that otherwise would have had to
come from Public Health’s budget.

However, any underspends represent delayed costs, rather than savings.

4.3

Money that hasn’t been spent at year end remains within the statutory Public Health
ring-fenced reserve, as required by the conditions of the Grant, and it may only be
spent on the Grant’s defined public health services.

5.

Recommendations

5.1

Health and Adult Care Scrutiny is asked to note the update on the delivery of public
health services so far in 2021.

6.

Financial considerations

6.1

Contained within the report, particularly pertaining to the conditions of the ring-fenced
Public Health grant.

7.

Legal considerations

7.1

The deployment of the Public Health Grant for specified services is a statutory
responsibility under the Health and Social Care Act 2012.

8.

Environmental impact considerations

8.1

Contained within the report.

Page 42

Agenda Item 9
9.

Equality considerations

9.1

Contained within the report.

10.

Risk assessment considerations

10.1 Contained within the report.

Steven Brown
DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH

Page 43

Agenda Item 10
ACH/21/142

Health and Adult Care Scrutiny
11 November 2021
HEALTH AND CARE GENERAL UPDATE PAPER
Joint report from Devon County Council and NHS Devon Clinical Commissioning
Group
1. Recommendation
1.1. That the Health and Adult Care Scrutiny Committee receives this report that
contains updates and general information responding to specific actions, requests
or discussions during the previous Health and Adult Care Scrutiny Committee
meeting.
2. Purpose
2.1. To respond to specific questions or comments from previous meeting and provide
updates on the latest news from the Devon Health and Care system
3. Celebrating local success and achievements
Social Worker of the Year Awards
3.1. This year DCC has again been successful in being shortlisted for awards at the
Social Worker of the Year Awards. Congratulation to our incredible colleagues
Rosemarie Connor in the Exeter Community Health and Social Care Team and
Florina Rice in the West Devon Community Health and Social Care Team for their
shortlisting in the Newly Qualified Social Worker of the Year category.
North Devon’s emergency department in top ten for patient experience in
national survey
3.2 Northern Devon Healthcare NHS Trust’s emergency department has ranked in
the top ten nationally on overall patient experience.
3.3 The Care Quality Commission’s (CQC) urgent and emergency care survey asked
people who visited North Devon’s emergency department in September 2020
what they thought about their experience.
3.4 In total, 501 Northern Devon Healthcare NHS Trust ED patients responded to the
survey and the response rate for NDHT was 41%, compared to the national
average of 30.5%. Highlights from the survey results include:





High scores for patients having confidence and trust in the staff examining
and treating them
High scores for staff involving patients in decisions about their care and
treatment
Significant improvements for cleanliness of ED
Higher scores than most trusts for patients feeling that they were treated with
respect and dignity in the ED

Page 45

Agenda Item 10


Significant improvements for the time it took between first talking to a doctor
or nurse and being examined

Carers Hospital Service
3.5 On the back of the Carers Hospital Service winning a Health Service Journal Award,
the service is now being delivered in Derriford and Torbay hospital after great
success in the RD&E.
3.6 The service, delivered by Devon Carers continues to be a great success in
supporting carers, enabling people to return home from hospital quicker and also
preventing hospital admissions.
NHS Nightingale Hospital Exeter wins collaboration award
3.7 Last year, thousands of people played a crucial role in building the NHS Nightingale
Hospital Exeter, which was set up to provide extra capacity to support existing NHS
services across the region.
3.8 In just 57 days, 2,500 people worked together to transform a former retail unit into a
state-of-the-art hospital facility for patients with COVID-19, including NHS
organisations across Devon, BAM Construction, and hundreds of workers and
volunteers from across the South West.
3.9 This achievement has been recognised at the Institution of Civil Engineers South
West Awards, where the Nightingale project team won the “Collaboration of the
Year” category.
3.10 As well as caring for nearly 250 patients with COVID-19 from across three counties
in the height of the pandemic, the site has been used to provide over 6,000
important diagnostic scans to local people, supported the delivery of two COVID-19
vaccine studies and hosted overseas nurse training for three local NHS Trusts.
3.11 Further construction work is now underway at the NHS Nightingale Hospital Exeter,
which will provide a range of services to help tackle waiting lists across Devon and
the wider South West region from later on this year.
4

COVID-19 update
Additional short term adult social care funding announced

4.1 In October the government announced a third round of the Adult Social Care

Infection Control and Testing Funding. This fund has been extended until 31 March
2022, with an extra £388 million of funding to support the care sector to put in place
crucial measures over the winter period.
4.2 Ring fenced exclusively for actions which support care homes and Care Quality

Commission regulated community care providers the purpose of this fund is to
support adult social care providers (including those with whom the local authority
does not have a contract) to:


reduce the rate of COVID-19 transmission within and between care
settings through effective infection prevention and control practices and
increase COVID-19 and flu vaccine uptake among staff

Page 46

Agenda Item 10


conduct testing of staff and visitors in care settings to identify and isolate
positive cases, and in order to enable close contact visiting where
possible

4.3 Providers in Devon will receive £6.35M paid in 2 tranches. The first 60% of the

fund will be paid to local authorities in October 2021. The remaining 40% of the
fund will be paid in January 2022.
Outbreaks in social care settings
4.4 As of the 28 October 2021 the number of COVID-19 outbreaks in social care

settings in Devon was 53, compared to a peak of 92 in January this year. Work
continues in supporting providers including managing staffing levels.
COVID-19 patients in hospital
4.5 As of the 28 October 2021, across ICS Devon there were 118 people in hospital

due to COVID-19 (RD&E 36; NDHT 14) with 9 people in either an Intensive Care
Unit or a High Dependency Unit (RD&E 3; NDHT 0)
Vaccination update
4.6 As of the 28 October 2021, in Devon 97% of care home residents and 96% of

care home staff have received their first dose of the COVID-19 vaccination.
4.7 The booster programme is also making process with 51% of care home residents

and 29% of care home staff having received to date.
4.8 Flu vaccinations are also being delivered with 55% of care home residents and

16% of staff vaccinated at date

5

Skills for Care annual report highlights workforce challenges in Devon

5.1 The biggest single challenge for adult social care is providing a care market that

is sufficient to meet the growing and more complex needs people have. This
challenge is primarily down to difficulties in recruiting and retaining a workforce.
5.2 We have long documented this growing challenge, and this is further highlighted

in the latest Skills for Care report ‘The State of the adult social care sector and
workforce in England’ and supporting data sets.
5.3 The report states that in Devon the vacancy rate among care giving roles is

estimated at 15%, among the highest in the region and above the national
average. Another finding is that 67% of those recruited to caring roles are
recruited from within the sector.

6

Additional workforce funding

6.1 An additional £162.5 million of new funding to help workforce retention and

recruitment has also been announced,

Page 47

Agenda Item 10
6.2 The ring-fenced funding, available until the end of March 2022, will support local

authorities working with providers to recruit staff. It will also be available to help
retain the existing workforce – through overtime payments and staff banks of
people ready to work in social care – and will provide further capacity to support
their health and well-being through occupational health. Devon can expect to
receive in the regional of £2.4M.

7

North Devon Link Services

7.1 At the Heath and Adult Care Scrutiny Committee meeting in September,

Members discussed the consultation on the future of the North Devon Link
Services.
7.2 The consultation has now ended, and all responses and correspondence

received are being considered and recommendations will be presented to
Cabinet in December.

8

Proud to Care update

8.1 The latest Proud to Care campaign ‘find your calling’ has been launched with a

new film to encourage people to enter the caring workforce.
8.2 Workforce challenge remains one of our key pressures and Elected Members

are encouraged to share this film in their networks to support conversations
about career in the caring workforce in their communities.
8.3 The Proud to Care Team are currently developing a Partnership Toolkit to

support all partners in sharing and spreading the Proud to Care messages.

9

LoveCare update

9.1 The LoveCare programme aims to help create a valued, high quality adult social

care workforce strong enough to meet the needs of today and the future. The
County Council believes that ensuring social care is recognised as an equal
partner with the NHS is fundamental to achieving that aim.
9.2 On the 3 December DCC will hold an “appreciative inquiry”, an opportunity to

celebrate the workforce and all that is good about adult social care and the huge
contribution it makes to the wellbeing of Devon people and communities.
9.3 Importantly, it will also be listening event, a positive forum where care workers

and providers can contribute their views on not only what makes the service
rewarding but what can be done to make it better.
9.4 The views expressed at the event will help inform policy development in Devon

and contribute to the national debate on a future strategy for adult social care

Page 48

Agenda Item 10
10 New purpose-built GP practice invests in patients’ future.
10.1 A new, purpose-built GP practice opened in October for the people of Crediton

and the surrounding areas thanks to collaborative working between local GPs
and the wider NHS.
10.2 The population of Crediton is expected to rise significantly over the next five

years. The new facility will provide patients with a state-of-the-art health hub
that can tackle the current and future challenges for health and care for a much
larger population than it currently serves.
10.3 There will be a greater focus on prevention and wellbeing services, with more

community and specialist clinics located on site, working much more closely with
the general practice team.
10.4 The new practice will offer a much wider range of services than were available

previously from the Newcombes and Chiddenbrook sites in the town. There are
expanded general practice teams, including advanced nurse practitioners and
paramedics, improving access to clinicians at the practice.
10.5 There is also space and facilities for training GPs and nurses, rooms for patient

groups to meet, and additional office space and IT equipment for staff.
10.6 The project, costing £8 million, is one of a number of sites across the country to

receive major NHS funding to improve facilities.
10.7 Eighty percent of the funding has come from a long-term loan from the NHS

England Estates and Technology Transformation Fund – a national funding
programme to support GP practices to make improvements to services for local
patients including more modern, expanded facilities, use of new technologies.
Additional funding has been loaned by Mid-Devon District Council.

Tim Golby
Locality Director – North and East
Devon County Council and NHS Devon Clinical Commissioning Group
Electoral Divisions: All
Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care and Health Services: Councillor James
McInnes
Chief Officer for Adult Care and Health: Jennie Stephens
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972: LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS
Contact for Enquiries:
Tel No: 01392 382300
BACKGROUND PAPER

James Martin
Room: G42
DATE

Nil

Page 49

FILE REFERENCE

